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DEPARTMENT OF PURCHASING & CONTRACT COMPLIANCE 

Winner 2000- 2008 Achievement of Excellence in Procurement Award 
National Purchasing Institute 

 
Felicia Strong-Whitaker, Director 

  

 
 

 

November 1, 2013 
 

 
Re:     13ITB90274YB-TR, Wireless Communication Services 
 
 
Dear Bidders: 
 
Attached is one (1) copy of Addendum 3, hereby made a part of the above 
referenced Bid (ITB).   
 
Except as provided herein, all terms and conditions in the Bid referenced above 
remain unchanged and in full force and effect. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 

Terrence Reese, APA 
Terrence Reese, APA 
Assistant Purchasing Agent  
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13ITB90274YB-TR, Wireless Communication Services 
Addendum No. 3 
Page Two 

 
This Addendum forms a part of the contract documents and modifies the original 
RFP documents as noted below: 
 

The following questions were posed of the aforementioned ITB project: 
 

QUESTION 1: Deadline Extension - Vendor would like to respectfully request an 
extension of the due date until November 26, 2013.  Vendor would like to properly 
review the requirements of the RFP issued by the County and to develop the 
appropriate responses. Vendor believes that it will be beneficial to the County’s 
sourcing process for it to use the additional time to develop and submit a 
comprehensive response. Vendor believes that the additional time spent now will 
alleviate the need for the County to engage in several rounds of clarification after 
receipt and review of the proposal. 
ANSWER 1: The County doesn’t wish to extend the deadline for this project.  

 
QUESTION 2: Sample Contract Agreement - The County has included a sample 
Contract Agreement as part of its ITB. Will the County consider continuing its 
existing Agreement with the Vendor that is based upon the purchasing volume of 
all the eligible agencies throughout the state and thus, includes much larger 
discounts than the Vendor could offer the County in a stand-alone contract based 
simply on the County’s purchases? 
ANSWER 2: The vendor can certainly offer GTA pricing should they desire, since 
Fulton County is a governmental entity within the State, it is expected the vendor 
community would provide the best pricing available to increase the chances of 
winning the award.  However, Fulton County will use its’ own contract template to 
determine the Terms and Conditions of the agreement.  
 
QUESTION 3: Page 2 of 14, Section 3, Subsection 3 - Bid Bond - Bid Bond is 
listed as a required submittal; however, Sections 7 and 8 in the Instructions to 
Bidders indicate that Bid and Contract Security and Surety Bonds are not 
applicable for this project.  Please clarify whether these documents are required. 
ANSWER 3: Please disregard; the County isn’t requiring any bonds for this 
project. 

 
QUESTION 4: Page 8 of 14, Section 20 - Execution of Contract Documents.  
Paragraphs two and three state: “Within ten (10) days after receipt the Contractor 
shall return all the documents properly executed by the Contractor and the 
Contractor's surety. Attached to each document shall be an original power-of-
attorney for the person executing the bonds for the surety and certificates of 
insurance for the required insurance coverage. 

 
After receipt of the documents executed by the Contractor and his surety with 
the power-of-attorney and certificates of insurance, the County shall complete 
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the execution of the documents. Distribution of the completed documents will 
be made upon completion.”  
However, page 3 of 14, Section 8 Surety Bonds states (Not Applicable for this 
project).  Please clarify if a surety bond is required to be provided with this 
solicitation response. 

ANSWER 4: A Surety Bond isn’t required for this project. 
 
QUESTION 5: Page 10 of 14, Section 26.a, Commencement Term - The ITB 
indicates that the “Commencement Term” of this Agreement shall begin on the 
date of execution of the Agreement in the year 2014 and shall end on the 31st 
day of December 2014.  If the Agreement is not executed until after January 1, 
2014, this would imply that the initial term would be less than one year. Please 
clarify the initial term of the resulting Agreement. 
ANSWER 5: It is the County’s intention to award this project in 2013 and start the 
project from 01/01/2014 through 12/31/2014 with two (2) renewal options.  

 

QUESTION 6: Page 12 of 14, Section 29 Bid General Conditions Subsection 3 -
The ITB states: “The successful Offeror must assume full responsibility for 
delivery of all goods and services proposed”; however, The Vendor uses 
common carriers to deliver goods to the County FOB delivery. Will the County 
please clarify this requirement? 
ANSWER 6: This means the offeror has the capability in all respects to perform 
fully the contract requirements and the experience, integrity, perseverance, 
reliability, capacity, facilities etc. which will assure good faith performance.  

 
QUESTION 7: Page 12 of 14, Section 29 Bid General Conditions Subsection 4 - 
The ITB states: “The successful Offeror must assume full responsibility for 
replacement of all defective or damaged goods and/or performance of contracted 
services within thirty (30) days' notice by the County of such defect, damage or 
deficiency”.  Would the County please revise this section to acknowledge service 
issues will be addressed within 30 days (e.g. in-building service coverage issues 
may not be resolved within a 30 day period)? 
ANSWER 7: Yes, this is acceptable. 
  
QUESTION 8: Page 12 of 14, Section 29 Bid General Conditions Subsection 8 - 
Vendor respectfully requests that the County revise this section to read:  “In case 
of default by the successful Offeror, Fulton County may procure the articles or 
services from another source.”  Vendor reserves the right to cure issues within 30 
days of receipt of notice from the County. Vendor will not be responsible for the 
higher costs of its competitors. 
ANSWER 8: This is not acceptable; this general condition is just ensuring the 
County is protected should such a situation occur. The County expects that the 
awardee is professional enough to prevent such occurrences.      
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QUESTION 9: Page 13 of 14, Section 29.10., Utility Contracting – Since this ITB 
is for Wireless Communications, we believe that this requirement is not 
applicable.  Please confirm. 
ANSWER 9: Not applicable to this project. 
 
QUESTION 10: Paragraph 3, Construction of the Work – This paragraph refers to 
furnishing “all necessary materials, equipment, machinery, tools, apparatus, 
means of transportation and labor necessary, and to complete the construction of 
the work in full and complete accordance with the shown, noted, and reasonably 
intended requirements of the Specifications and Contract Documents to the full 
and entire satisfaction of the Board of Commissioners of Fulton County, Atlanta, 
Georgia, with a definite understanding that no money will be allowed for extra 
work except as set forth in the attached General Conditions and Contract 
Documents for the following prices.”  Since this ITB is for the provisioning of 
Wireless Communications products and services, Vendor will not build any 
structures or install any equipment under the terms of this agreement; therefore 
we believe that this requirement is not applicable.  Please confirm and remove 
this requirement or change to “if applicable”. 
ANSWER 10: This is not applicable for this contract.  
 
QUESTION 11: Page 1 of 15, Section 1. G. Mobile Device Management - Will the 
County agree to make this requirement optional? 
ANSWER 11: No. The County requires this feature to monitor its wireless fleet. 
   
QUESTION 12: Page 2 of 15, Section 3. Transition Plans - Functional 
Requirements – The requirements state:  “The vendor is also required to limit 
interruptions in services during conversion from the current providers (to the 
minimum period necessary to convert equipment and network access per user); 
this includes ALL Services for the FULL transition period”.  Will the County 
acknowledge that the Vendor does not control the release of existing phone 
number from another carrier and existing phone number must be eligible for 
porting to transition from one carrier to another?  Therefore, Vendor cannot be 
responsible for the availability of all services for the full transition period.   
ANSWER 12: The County will work with the current vendor on a transition plan 
for the new contract to include release telephone numbers if applicable. 
 
QUESTION 13: Page 2 of 15, Section 4, Current Environment - The ITB refers to 
Item B. Licensing, Support, Equipment, and Supplies; however, there is no 
section within the ITB for this Item B.  Please clarify what the County is referring 
to for this requirement. 
ANSWER 13: This Statement can be removed. 
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QUESTION 14: Page 4 of 15, Section 5.n), Mobile Device Management – The 
ITB indicates the Service provider must provide an MDM solution.  Will the 
County be willing to accept stand-alone bids for this service unbundled from the 
basic wireless services?  Would the County agree to contract this service 
separately if this service may not be directly provided by the Vendor?  Will the 
County agree to make this requirement optional? 
ANSWER 14: The County would like to have an all-inclusive cost per device; 
therefore, this item will remain as a requirement. 

 
QUESTION 15: Page 5 of 15, Section 6. Scope of Work Section A. Functional 
Requirements Paragraph four states - The Wireless Communications network, all 
appropriate connecting equipment, supplies, services, and any other hardware 
and software required for provisioning the service, here after referred to as 
"Wireless Communication Services", including but not limited to design, 
installation, provisioning, all monitoring, maintenance and problem resolution for 
the complete Wireless  Communications  Services.”  Since this ITB is for the 
provisioning of Wireless Communications products and services, Vendor will not 
build any structures or install any equipment under the terms of this agreement.  
Will the County please revise this requirement? 
ANSWER 15: As stated in the Pre-Bid conference, Fulton County is expecting 
the responding vendor to provide the coverage needed for Fulton facilities as 
outlined in the specifications of the ITB.  Vendor will be required to meet the 
requirement. 

 
QUESTION 16: Page 7 of 15, Section 3 Transition Plan to Bidder’s network and 
Service - Would the County please revise the requirement.  Will the County 
acknowledge that the Vendor does not control the release of existing phone 
number from another carrier an existing phone number must be eligible for 
porting to transition from one carrier to another.  Therefore, Vendor cannot 
guarantee the conversion of services will be completed with interruptions in 
services limited to no more than two hours. 
ANSWER 16: The County will work with the current vendor on a transition plan 
for the new contract to include release telephone numbers if applicable. 

 

QUESTION 17: Page 8 of 15, Section 5.a.1., Coverage Map - The ITB requires a 
detailed local area coverage map identifying area of coverage and concentration 
of cell towers within a 50 mile radius of Fulton County Government Center 
Complex.  Maps depicting the location of cell towers, switching centers and other 
network elements are proprietary and confidential. Release of this information 
could place Vendor at a competitive disadvantage. Will the County be willing to 
remove this requirement from the ITB response and instead agree to a separate 
meeting under a Non-Disclosure Agreement so that Vendor can provide this 
information in confidence? 
ANSWER 17: No, the requirement will not be removed. Fulton County covers a 
large geographic area and we need to have an idea of the challenges in 
coverage that we will be facing for any proposed vendor. The vendor may mark 
the pages “Proprietary vendor information.”  
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QUESTION 18: Page 11 of 15, Section 5.p.a., Pricing - Vendor cannot agree to 
the proposed pricing structure for ruggedized equipment proposed by the 
County.  Would the County agree to allow Vendors to propose a pricing structure 
that may provide a greater benefit to the County? The ITB refers to Item B. 
Licensing, Support, Equipment, and Supplies; however, there is no section within 
the ITB for this Item B. Please clarify what the County is referring to for this 
requirement. 
ANSWER 18: Vendor may propose his pricing for the ruggedized devices on the 
pricing spreadsheet. The reference to pricing form Section 4, B will be removed.   

  
QUESTION 19: Page 11 of 15, Section 6. Support Requirements, Section 3. 
Internet Support - Would the County agree to make the Technical Support Chat 
line optional? 
ANSWER 19: No, the county would like to leave this as a requirement to allow 
Fulton County staff to have multiple options to receive technical support. 

 
QUESTION 20: Page 13 of 15 Section C Special Support Requirements - Public 
Safety Equipment Secure Provisioning and Account Requirements Sections 2 
and 4.  Vendor must follow Office of Emergency Communications (OEC) of the 
Department of Homeland Security (DHS) rules regarding priority communication 
services. To participate, authorized National Security and Emergency 
Preparedness (NS/EP) users must first apply to and receive approval from the 
OEC to receive this service. Will the County please remove these requirements? 
ANSWER 20: During an emergency, the County is requesting that our Public 
Safety community have priority as regulated by the Office of Emergency 
Communications (OEC). The requirement will not be removed. 

 
QUESTION 21: Page 14 of 15 - Section 7, Mobile Device Management Solution - 
The ITB indicates that the County is expecting the successful provider to provide 
a fully managed MDM solution. Would the County agree to contract this service 
separately if this service may not be directly provided by the Vendor? Will the 
County agree to make this requirement optional? 
ANSWER 21: No, the County requires this feature to monitor its wireless fleet 
and would like to distribute the cost back to each user. 
 
QUESTION 22: Page 14 of 15 - Section 9, References - The County is requiring 
that the Vendor provide a description of the service (number of units) with its 
response.  Most reference requests involve disclosing details of the service the 
reference customer receives. Such information is referred to as Customer 
Network Proprietary Information (CPNI) is protected by federal law and cannot be 
released by any carrier without the customer’s consent. Due to CPNI rules 
Vendor is not able to include this information, the reference, when contacted by 
the County will determine what information it will share with the County. Vendor 
requests the County please remove this requirement. 
ANSWER 22: Fulton County is asking for references so that the County can 
verify with customers that are similar to Fulton that the vendor is able to provide 
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the critical necessary communication services, meets its responsibilities and is 
able to satisfactorily provide services and equipment to a County the size of 
Fulton. If the vendor cannot provide references who are satisfied with their 
performance, Fulton County would be very leery of entering into a contract with 
them. The requirement will not be removed. 
   
QUESTION 23: Mobile Device Management - Can the County make this 
requirement optional? 
ANSWER 23: No, the County requires this feature to monitor its wireless fleet 
and would like to distribute the cost back to each user. 
 
QUESTION 24: Cost Summary - The ITB refers to the Yellow highlighted areas 
within the attached “Wireless Communications Cost Summary Worksheet”; 
however, there is no such document included in the ITB. Please provide this 
document so that the Vendor can comply with this requirement. 
ANSWER 24: The document is attached with the PDF file located on the Fulton 
County Website. 
 
QUESTION 25: Page 2 of 4, Section 4, Umbrella Liability - Vendor’s certificates 
does not show umbrella coverage because its primary policies include more than 
enough limits.  Please remove as a certificate requirement. 
ANSWER 25: Yes. The General Liability Insurance aggregate must meet or 
exceed the combined limits. 
 
QUESTION 26: Page 2 of 4, Certificates of Insurance, first paragraph - 
“Certificates shall state that the policy or policies shall not expire, be cancelled or 
altered without at least thirty (30) days’ prior written notice to Fulton County 
Government” Can you Please delete the first sentence in its entirety? Vendor can 
provide notice but this language is not on its Certificates of Insurance 
ANSWER 26: Yes, this would be acceptable. 
 

QUESTION 27: Page 2 of 4, Certificates of Insurance, third paragraph -  “If 
Fulton County Government shall so request, the Respondent, Contractor or 
Vendor will furnish the County for its inspection and approval such policies of 
insurance with all endorsements, or confirmed specimens thereof certified by the 
insurance company to be true and correct copies.”  Please delete this paragraph 
in its entirety.  Vendor’s policies of Insurance with all endorsements are 
confidential and proprietary and cannot be release to the County for inspection. 
ANSWER 27: Yes, this is acceptable. 
 
QUESTION 28: Page 3 of 4, Protection of Property - What possible damage to 
person and property does the County foresee in the provisioning of wireless 
products and services? 
ANSWER 28: This section would not be applicable for the subject Wireless 
Communications Contract. 
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QUESTION 29: Will the County agree to an EEOR report that is mutually 
acceptable to the Vendor and the County? 
ANSWER 29: The County would prefer that you use its forms. 
 
QUESTION 30: As Vendor does not anticipate engaging any subcontractors to 
fulfill its primary obligations as a wireless communications carrier to meet the 
County’s requirements will the County agree to make this requirement contingent 
upon the use of subcontractors? 
ANSWER 30: Yes    
 
QUESTION 31: Can the vendor agree to give consideration to the First Source 
Jobs Program Applicants who meets the Vendor’s minimum qualifications for the 
open position? 
ANSWER 31: Yes; however, the vendor must complete the forms. 
 
QUESTION 32: With regards to the MDM requirements requested in this ITB, 
Sprint is able to s offer the MDM solution and will bill these MDM services on the 
Sprint invoice on behalf of our third party partner providing the MDM solution.  
Fulton County will be required to agree to the MDM partner’s End User License 
Agreement (EULA) in order to utilize the MDM solution, keeping in mind that this 
would be billed directly through Sprint. Would Fulton County agree to sign the 
MDM partner’s separate EULA for the MDM solution? 
ANSWER 32: Fulton County would have to review the EULA to insure it does not 
conflict with any County standards or restrictions, and would have to clear any 
issues through our Legal department, but we have many EULA’s in place with 
other vendors and applications, so we do not foresee any major problem in this 
regard. The EULA would have to be included as part of the contract. 
 
QUESTION 33: Need further clarification on section 1 Instructions to Bidders, 
page 9 of 14 Paragraph 22. JOINT VENTURES; 

 Since T-Mobile has acquired METRO PCS is it necessary to submit 
binding documents? We operate under the T-Mobile name and all 
authorized entities are the same. I want to make sure we are in 
compliance with this section.  

ANSWER 33: If you are submitting your ITB as a joint venture, you must submit 
the names of the person/people authorized to sign contract documents.  A joint 
venture is formed by two (2) or more companies merging together to bid on a 
specific project.  If you have bought a company out-right, you are the owner of 
the company. That is not a joint venture. 
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ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF ADDENDUM No. 3 
   
The undersigned proposer acknowledges receipt of this addendum by returning 
one (1) copy of this form with the proposal package to the Purchasing 
Department, Fulton County Public Safety Building, 130 Peachtree Street, Suite 
1168, Atlanta, Georgia 30303 by the RFP due date and time Tuesday, 
November 12, 2013 at 11:00 A.M. 
 
 
This is to acknowledge receipt of Addendum No. 3, ______ day of ______, 2013. 
 
 

________________________________ 
      Legal Name of Bidder 
 
       

________________________________ 
      Signature of Authorized Representative 
 
 

________________________________ 
      Title 


